
 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER 
Wednesday, October 3, 2018 – 2:00pm 

Monterey One Water Board Room, 5 Harris Court, Building “D” 
Ryan Ranch, Monterey, California 

AGENDA 
 

Watermaster Board  
City of Seaside – Mayor Ralph Rubio, Chairman 
Coastal Subarea Landowner – Director Paul Bruno, Vice Chair 
California American Water – Alternate Nina Miller 
City of Sand City – Mayor Mary Ann Carbone 
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District – Director Jeanne Byrne 
Laguna Seca Subarea Landowner – Director Bob Costa 
City of Monterey – Councilmember Dan Albert  
City of Del Rey Oaks – Mayor Jerry Edelen  
Monterey County/Monterey County Water Resources Agency – Supervisor Mary Adams, District 5 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. ROLL CALL 
A. Notice of Appointment of California American Water Member 

III. PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS  
 Oral communications is on each meeting agenda in order to provide members of the public an 

opportunity to address the Watermaster on matters within its jurisdiction.  Matters not appearing on 
the agenda will not receive action at this meeting but may be referred to the Watermaster 
Administrator or may be set for a future meeting.  Presentations will be limited to three minutes or as 
otherwise established by the Watermaster.  In order that the speaker may be identified in the minutes 
of the meeting, it is helpful if speakers would use the microphone and state their names.  Oral 
communications are now open.  

 
IV. REVIEW OF AGENDA  

If there are any items that arose after the 72-hour posting deadline, a vote may be taken to add the 
item to the agenda pursuant to the requirements of Government Code Section 54954.2(b). (A 2/3-
majority vote is required). 
 

V. MINUTES 
 Approve Minutes of the Regular Board meeting held August 1, 2018 .................................................. 5 

VI. CONSENT CALENDAR 
A. Consider approving Summary of Payments July - August 2018 totaling $19,704.70 ..................... 7 
B. Consider Approving Fiscal Year 2018 Financial Reports through August 31, 2018....................... 9 

 
VII. ORAL PRESENTATION - None Scheduled 

 



 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

VIII. OLD BUSINESS – None 
 

IX. NEW BUSINESS 
A. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

1. BUDGET & FINANCE COMMITTEE / TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE  
a. Discussion/Consider Approving the Proposed Annual Budgets for Fiscal Year January 1, 

2019 through December 31, 2019 
i. Administrative Fund ..........................................................................................................13 
ii. Monitoring and Management – Staff Transmittal .............................................................17 

Work Plan...................................................................................................................19 
Operations Fund .........................................................................................................27 
Capital Fund (unfunded) ............................................................................................31 

iii. Replenishment Fund (no action required) .........................................................................33 
 

b. Discussion/Consider Approving the Proposed Replenishment Assessment Unit Cost 
for Water Year October 1, 2018 through September 30, 2019................................................35 
 

c. Consider Approving Request for Increase in Technical Program Manager Hourly 
Rate ..........................................................................................................................................39 

 
d. Consider Approving Amendment No.1 to Brownstein, Hyatt, Farber, Schreck (Russ 

McGlothlin) RFS No. 2018-01 ................................................................................................41 
 

2. TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
a. Consider Approval of Application for Storage and Recovery of Water from the Pure Water 

Monterey Project  (full application is available for viewing at 
http://seasidebasinwatermaster.org/Other/Cal%20Am%20Storage%20Agreement%20Application.pdf) ........45 

  
X. INFORMATIONAL REPORTS (No Action Required) 

A. Watermaster report of production of the Seaside Basin Water Year 2018 (October 1, 2017 –  
September 30, 2018) thru June 30, 2018............................................................................................49 

B. Notice Of Lodging Of Correspondence Received Re: Pure Water Monterey Project (is available for 
viewing at http://seasidebasinwatermaster.org/Other/2018.08.16%20SEASIDE%20Notice%20of%20Lodging.pdf) 
 

XI. DIRECTOR’S REPORTS 

XII. STAFF COMMENTS .............................................................................................................................51 

XIII. NEXT REGULAR MEETING DATE – Wednesday, November 7, 2018 - 2:00 P.M.  

XIV. ADJOURNMENT 
 
This agenda was forwarded via e-mail to the City Clerks of Seaside, Monterey, Sand City and Del Rey Oaks; the Clerk of the Monterey Board of Supervisors, the Clerk 
to the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District; the Clerk at the Monterey County Water Resources Agency, Monterey One Water and the California American 
Water Company for posting on September 26, 2018 per the Ralph M. Brown Act, Government Code Section 54954.2(a). 



3



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

4



 

 

SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER (Watermaster) 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 
Monterey One Water Board Room, 5 Harris Court, Building “D” 

Ryan Ranch, Monterey, California 
August 1, 2018 

 
I . CALL TO ORDER – Chair Rubio called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. 

 
I I . ROLL CALL 

 City of Seaside – Mayor Ralph Rubio – Chair 
Coastal Subarea Landowner – Director Paul Bruno - Vice Chair 
California American Water (CAW) –Nina Miller (Alternate) 
Laguna Seca Subarea Landowner – Director Bob Costa  
City of Monterey – Council Member Dan Albert 
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (MPWMD) – Director Jeanne Byrne 
Monterey County/Monterey County Water Resources Agency – Supervisor Mary Adams 
 
Absent: 
City of Sand City – Mayor Mary Ann Carbone  
City of Del Rey Oaks – Mayor Jerry Edelen 
 
Others Present 

 Watermaster Technical Program Manager – Robert Jaques 
Watermaster Administrative Officer – Laura Dadiw 
Lori Girard, CAW Legal Counsel 
 

III . PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: None 
 

IV.  REVIEW OF AGENDA: There were no requested changes to the agenda. 
 

V .  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

It was moved by Director Council Member Albert, seconded by Director Bruno and unanimously 
carried to approve as presented the minutes of the Regular Board meeting held March 7, 2018.  

 
VI .  CONSENT CALENDAR  

A.  Consider approving Summary of Payments February – June  2018 totaling $105,807.79 
B. Consider Approving Fiscal Year 2018 Financial Reports through June 30, 2018 
C .  Technical Memorandum from HydroMetrics on Updating and Recalibrating the Seaside Basin 

Groundwater Model (View the full memo at http://seasidebasinwatermaster.org/sbwmARC.html in 
the Meeting Notices/Agenda & Packets/Minutes column on the August 1, 2018 date line)  

D.  Purchase of HydroMetrics by Montgomery and Associates, Consider Issuance of a Professional 
Services Agreement with Montgomery and Associates, and Consider Reissuance of Existing 
HydroMetrics Contracts to Montgomery and Associates (View the full agreement at 
http://seasidebasinwatermaster.org/sbwmARC.html in the Meeting Notices/Agenda & 
Packets/Minutes column on the August 1, 2018 date line)  

E. Montgomery & Associates Contract to Update the Basin Management Action Plan  
F. Adjustment to the Watermaster 2018 Administrative Budget to cover unanticipated costs for 

services from Brownstein, Hyatt, Farber, Schreck (BHFS) (Russ McGlothlin) 
Director Bruno requested Item F. be pulled from the consent calendar for discussion. 

5



Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster      
Regular Board Meeting 8/1/18   
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 
Moved by Supervisor Adams, seconded by Director Byrne and unanimously carried 
to approve consent calendar items A – E as presented. 

 
Director Bruno noted that the requested adjustment was not reviewed by the Budget/Finance 
Committee, which he felt was fine since the adjustment shifts staff cost savings from the Contractor 
budget line in the Administrative Fund to the Legal budget line for no net change. He cautioned staff 
against freely engaging counsel on matters that might be handled by counsel to the parties. Director 
Rubio requested that Don Freeman, Seaside legal counsel, review matters prior to assigning to Mr. 
McGlothlin. Lori Girard, CAW legal counsel stated she is available to confer with staff or Mr. 
McGlothlin to determine whether Mr. McGlothlin or parties’ legal counsels can best resolve.  

 
Moved by Director Bruno, seconded by Council Member Albert and unanimously 
carried to approve consent calendar Item F as presented. 

 
VII . ORAL PRESENTATION: None Scheduled 

 
VIII . NEW BUSINESS: None 

 
IX.  OLD BUSINESS: None 

 
X.  INFORMATIONAL REPORTS:  

A. Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) draft minutes from the meeting held March 14, June 13, 
and July 11, 2018 

B. Watermaster report of production of the Seaside Basin Water Year 2018 (October 1, 2017 – 
September 30, 2018) thru June 30, 2018  

C. Stipulation and [Proposed] Order Modifying Exhibit C to Amended Decision and Notice of 
Vacated Hearing Re: Bishop, Mcintosh & Mcintosh Motion To Modify Exhibit C To Amended 
Decision (View the full documents at http://seasidebasinwatermaster.org/sbwmARC.html in the 
Court Docs column on the July 2, 2018 date line) 

 
XI . DIRECTOR’S REPORTS: None 

 
XII . STAFF COMMENTS: Ms. Dadiw advised that a confidential memorandum from Watermaster 

legal counsel giving the status of a public records request and comments by Mr. Moore was 
distributed via email to board members late this afternoon. Printed copies of the memorandum were 
made available to board members. President Rubio stated that if the matter is deemed to require 
public action, it can be set at a regular or special meeting. 

 
Ms. Dadiw also informed that the Watermaster Treasurer and Budget/Finance Committee chair, 
Daphne Hodgson will be retiring from the City of Seaside on September 7, 2018. There will be 
Budget/Finance Committee meeting held prior to her departure then, with board approval, her 
successor will be trained to assume the treasurer and chair positions.  

 
XIII . NEXT MEETING DATE: The next meeting of the Watermaster board will be held 

Wednesday, September 5, 2018 at the Monterey One Water board room at 5 Harris Court, 
Building "D" on Ryan Ranch in Monterey at 2:00 p.m.  
 

XIV. There being no further business, Chair Rubio adjourned the meeting at 2:13 p.m.          

6



ITEM VI.A.
10/3/18

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Laura Dadiw, AO
DATE: October 3, 2018
SUBJECT: Summary of Payments made during the months of July - August 2018

RECOMMENDATIONS:

Summary of Payments Made July 2018
Dadiw Associates (Administrative Officer (AO))
June 26, 2018 through July 25, 2018 17.5 1,750.00$      

2.0 900.00           

Robert Jaques (Technical Program Manager)
July 2, 2018 through July 31, 2018             45 4,500.00        

Total for June 2018 7,150.00$      

SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER

Responded to emails, telephone inquiries, and other correspondence on a variety of 
Watermaster issues; prepared TAC agenda packet and attended TAC meeting on July 
11 and prepared minutes. Prepared for and attended SVBGSA Advisory or TAC 
meetings MoCo Gov Ctr Salinas; prepare agenda transmittals for August board 
meeting

Responded to telephone inquiries, e-mail, and other correspondence as needed 
regarding the Seaside Basin.  Gathered and posted water production and water level 
data. Prepared agenda  for August board meeting and completed minutes of meeting; 
discussions w/counsel on Moore PRA request matter; transitioned to new computer 
after WM PC computer failed; routinely picked up mail from PO Box; reconciled 
accounts to the City of Seaside Watermaster accounts; prepared financial reports; 
processed invoices

Consider approving the payment of bills submitted and authorized to be paid July - August 2018.

Brownstein, Hyatt, Farber, Schreck (Russ McGlothlin, Esq.)
June 2018-RFS 2018-01 Miscellaneous legal consultation
Moore PRA request matter; BMM amend place of use

7



Sumary of Payments Made August 2018
Dadiw Associates (Administrative Officer (AO))
July 26, 2018 through August 25, 2018 51 5,100.00$      

Brownstein, Hyatt, Farber, Schreck (Russ McGlothlin, Esq.)
July 2018-RFS 2018-01 Miscellaneous legal consultation 
Moore PRA records request matter & associated letters & filings 11.2 4,395.00        
Postage and filing fees 7.20               4,402.20$  

Robert Jaques (Technical Program Manager)
August 2, 2018 through August 27, 2018          26 2,600.00        

Todd Groundwater
July 1, 2018 through July 31, 2018          
Hydrometrics [Montgomery} Groundwater Modeling peer review 2.25 452.50           

Total for July 2018 12,554.70$    

Grand Total July - August 2018 19,704.70$    

Responded to emails, telephone inquiries, and other correspondence on a variety of 
Watermaster issues; prepared TAC agenda packet and attended TAC meeting on 
August 15 and prepared minutes. Prepared for and attended August board meeting. 

Responded to telephone inquiries, e-mail, and other correspondence as needed 
regarding the Seaside Basin.  Gathered and posted water production and water level 
data. Prepared agenda and packet for August board meeting and completed minutes 
of meeting; corres re:Sabolsic departure; prepared digital copy of Moore memo for 
emailing to parties; drafted Budget/Finance meeting agenda; cost share billing to 
MPWMD/M1W; counsel corres re: Judge withdrawl from WM case; draft 2019 
Admin budget; SNG calculations per Ghandour request; Moore matter Notice of 
Lodging review; PRA records request from two public iquiries; prepare for/attend 
Budget/Finance meeting; assist City of Seaside w/records request; routinely picked 
up mail from PO Box; reconciled accounts to the City of Seaside Watermaster 
accounts; prepared financial reports; processed invoices; reviewed and posted items 
to web site.

8



 

VI.B
10/3/18

2018 Adopted 
Revised Budget 

Contract 
Amount

Year to Date 
Revenue / 
Expenses

Available Balances & Assessments
Dedicated Reserve -                   -               
FY (Rollover) 42,000.00         32,782.94     
Admin Assessments 40,000.00         40,000.00     

Available 82,000.00         72,782.94     

Expenses
Contract Staff 40,000.00         50,000.00          23,450.00     
Legal Advisor 17,000.00         7,000.00            18,892.00     
Filing fees and postage 215.62         

Total Expenses 57,000.00         57,000.00          42,557.62     

Total Available 25,000.00         

Dedicated Reserve 25,000.00         25,000.00     

Net Available -                   5,225.32       

Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster

 Budget vs. Actual Administrative Fund
 Fiscal Year (January 1 - December 31, 2018)

Balance through August 31, 2018

9



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

10



 

VI.B.
10/3/18

2018 Adopted Budget
Contract 

Encumbrance
Year to Date 

Revenue/Expenses
Available Balances & Assessments

Operations Fund Assessment 192,288.00$            -$                       192,288.00$            
Pass Through 2018 -                        3,915.00                  1,957.50                
Cost Share Reimbursement 77,185.00               77,185.00                27,178.75               
FY 2017 Rollover 100,000.00              -                         218,732.19             

Total Available 369,473.00$            81,100.00$               440,156.44$            

Appropriations & Expenses
GENERAL

Technical Project Manager 50,000.00$              50,000.00$               26,750.00$             
Contingency @ 10% (not including TPM ) 29,043.00               -                         -                       

Total General 79,043.00$              50,000.00$               26,750.00$             

CONSULTANTS (Montgomery; Todd Groundwater; Web Site Database)
Program Administration 16,900.00$              
Production/Lvl/Qlty Monitoring 2,400.00                 
Groundwater Modeling RFS 2018-03 54,370.00               54,370.00                54,357.50               
Geochemical Modeling 50,000.00               -                         
Basin Management Action Plan 2018-04 65,260.00               45,260.00                -                       
Seawater Intrusion Analysis Report 2018-02 20,890.00               20,890.00                -                       

Total Consultants 209,820.00$            127,920.00$             56,028.75$             

MPWMD
Production/Lvl/Qlty Monitoring 48,832.00$              48,832.00                -                       
Pass Through 2018 -                        3,915.00                  -                       
Basin Management -                        -                       
Seawater Intrusion 1,192.00                 1,192.00                  -                       
Direct Costs -                        -                         -                       

Total MPWMD 50,024.00$              53,939.00$               -$                      

CONTRACTOR (Martin Feeney)
Production/Lvl/Qlty Monitoring 30,586.00$              30,585.56$               10,234.67$             

Total Appropriations & Expenses 369,473.00$            262,444.56$             93,013.42$             

Total Available -                        347,143.02             

 Fiscal Year (January 1 - December 31, 2018)
Balance through August 31, 2018

                                                Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster
                           Budget vs. Actual Monitoring & Management - Operations Fund

7,400.00$                1,671.25$               

11



 
ITEM

 VI.B
.

10/3/18

R
eplenishm

ent Fund 
2006

2007
2008

2009
2010

2011
2012

2013
2014

2015
2016

2017
Totals W

Y 2006 
Through 2017

 B
udget            

W
Y 2018 

Projected 
Totals Through 

W
Y 2018

A
ssessm

ents:
W

Y 05/06
W

Y 06/07
W

Y 07/08
W

Y 08/09
W

Y 09/10
W

Y 10/11
W

Y 11/12
W

Y 12/13
W

Y 13/14
W

Y 14/15
W

Y 15/16
W

Y 16/17
W

Y 17/18
U

nit C
ost:

$1,132 / $283
$1,132 / $283

$2,485 / 621.25
$3,040 / $760

$2,780 / $695
$2,780 / $695

$2,780 / $695
$2,780 / $695

$2,702 / $675.50
$2,702 / $675.50

$2,702 / $675.50
$2,872 / $718

$2,872 / $718

-
$             

1,641,004
$   

4,226,710
$      

(2,871,690)
$    

(2,839,939)
$   

(3,822,219)
$   

(6,060,164)
$   

(8,735,671)
$   

(6,173,771)
$        

(3,102,221)
$      

(676,704)
$        

(676,704)
$       

(491,747)
$       

C
al-A

m
 W

ater Production
3710.0 A

F
4059.9 A

F
3862.9 A

F
2966.0 A

F
3713.5 A

F
3416.0 A

F
3070.9 A

F
3076.6 A

F
3232.1 A

F

E
xceeding N

atural S
afe Yield 

C
onsidering A

lternative P
roducers

     2,106,652 
     2,565,471 

       5,199,014 
      3,773,464 

      4,112,933 
      3,187,854 

      2,280,943 
      2,380,842 

           2,790,539 
         2,113,414 

                   - 
         184,957 

 $    30,696,083 
         100,000 

30,796,083
$    

O
perating Yield O

verproduction 
R

eplenishm
ent

-
               

        20,235 
            8,511 

                - 
                - 

                - 
        154,963 

        181,057 
             281,012 

           312,103 
                   - 

                 - 
         957,881 

           20,000 
977,881

         
 $  2,106,652 

 $  2,585,706 
 $     5,207,525 

 $    3,773,464 
 $    4,112,933 

 $   3,187,854 
 $   2,435,907 

 $   2,561,899 
 $        3,071,550 

 $      2,425,516 
 $       184,957 

 $    31,653,964 
 $       120,000 

 $   31,773,964 

C
AW

 C
redit A

gainst A
ssessm

ent
(465,648)

      
(12,305,924)

     
(3,741,714)

$    
(5,095,213)

     
(5,425,799)

     
(5,111,413)

     
-

                
-

                    
-

                   
-

                   
(32,145,711)

     
(32,145,711)

     

C
A

W
 U

npaid B
alance

1,641,004
$   

4,226,710
$   

(2,871,690)
      

(2,839,939)
$    

(3,822,219)
$   

(6,060,164)
$   

(8,735,671)
$   

(6,173,771)
$   

(3,102,221)
$        

(676,704)
$        

(676,704)
$        

(491,747)
$       

(491,747)
$       

(371,747)
$       

(371,747)
$      

C
ity of Seaside B

alance Forw
ard

-
$             

243,294
$     

426,165
$        

1,024,272
$     

1,619,973
$    

891,509
$      

(110,014)
$      

(773,813)
$     

(1,575,876)
$        

(2,889,325)
$      

(3,346,548)
$      

(3,232,420)
$     

(3,142,500)
$     

C
ity of Seaside M

unicipal Production
332.0 A

F
387.7 A

F
294.3 A

F
293.4 A

F
282.9 A

F
240.7 A

F
233.7 A

F
257.7 A

F
223.6 A

F
223.6 A

F
185.01 A

F
E

xceeding N
atural S

afe Yield 
C

onsidering A
lternative P

roducers
       219,689 

       174,082 
         402,540 

        465,300 
        314,721 

        141,335 
        163,509 

        236,782 
             142,410 

            69,630 
           102,330 

           87,512 
 $     2,519,838 

         100,000 
2,619,838

$     
O

perating Yield O
verproduction 

R
eplenishm

ent
        12,622 

             85 
            4,225 

          16,522 
         20,690 

                - 
           1,689 

         27,007 
                3,222 

                 38 
            11,959 

            2,409 
         100,467 

           10,000 
110,467

         

Total M
unicipal

       232,310 
       174,167 

         406,764 
        481,823 

        335,412 
        141,335 

        165,198 
        263,788 

             145,631 
            69,667 

           114,290 
           89,920 

       2,620,305 
          110,000 

       2,730,305 

C
ity of Seaside - G

olf C
ourses

E
xceeding N

atural S
afe Yield - 

A
lternative P

roducer
               - 

               - 
         131,705 

          69,701 
                - 

                - 
                - 

                - 
                     - 

                   - 
                   - 

                 - 
         201,406 

                 - 
201,406

         
O

perating Yield O
verproduction 

R
eplenishm

ent
               - 

               - 
           32,926 

          17,427 
                - 

                - 
                - 

                - 
                     - 

                   - 
                   - 

                 - 
           50,353 

                 - 
50,353

          
Total G

olf C
ourses

               - 
               - 

         164,631 
          87,128 

                - 
                - 

                - 
                - 

                     - 
                   - 

                   - 
                 - 

         251,759 
                 - 

         251,759 

Total C
ity of Seaside*

 $    232,310 
 $    174,167 

 $       571,395 
 $      568,951 

 $     335,412 
 $     141,335 

 $     165,198 
 $     263,788 

 $          145,631 
 $          69,667 

 $         114,290 
 $        89,920 

 $     2,872,064 
 $       110,000 

 $    2,982,064 
C

ity of S
easide Late P

aym
ent 5%

        10,984 
          8,704 

           26,712 
          26,750 

         15,737 
           88,887 

          88,887 

In-lieu C
redit A

gainst A
ssessm

ent
-

               
-

                 
-

$               
(1,079,613)

     
(1,142,858)

     
(828,996)

       
(1,065,852)

     
(1,459,080)

          
(526,890)

          
(162)

               
-

                 
      (6,103,451)

-
                 

(6,103,451)
      

C
ity of S

easide U
npaid B

alance
243,294

$     
426,165

$     
1,024,272

$      
1,619,973

$     
891,509

$      
(110,014)

$      
(773,813)

$     
(1,575,876)

$   
(2,889,325)

$        
(3,346,548)

$      
(3,232,420)

$      
(3,142,500)

$     
 $    (3,142,500)

(3,032,500)
$     

(3,032,500)
$    

Total R
eplenishm

ent Fund B
alance

1,884,298
$   

4,652,874
$   

(1,847,417)
$     

(1,219,966)
$    

(2,930,710)
$   

(6,170,178)
$   

(9,509,483)
$   

(7,749,648)
$   

(5,991,546)
$        

(4,023,252)
$      

(3,909,125)
$      

(3,634,247)
$     

(3,634,247)
$     

(3,404,247)
$     

(3,404,247)
$    

R
eplenishm

ent Fund B
alance Forw

ard
               - 

1,884,298
$   

4,652,874
$      

(1,847,417)
$    

(1,219,966)
$   

(2,930,710)
$   

(6,170,178)
$   

(9,509,483)
$   

(7,749,648)
$        

(5,991,546)
$      

(4,023,252)
$      

(3,909,125)
$     

(3,634,247)
$     

Total R
eplenishm

ent A
ssessm

ents 
     2,349,946 

     2,768,576 
       5,805,632 

      4,369,165 
      4,464,082 

      3,329,189 
      2,601,104 

      2,825,688 
           3,217,182 

         2,495,183 
           114,290 

         274,877 
      34,614,915 

         230,000 
34,844,915

     
Total Paid and/or C

redited
      (465,648)

               - 
     (12,305,924)

     (3,741,714)
     (6,174,826)

     (6,568,657)
     (5,940,409)

     (1,065,852)
          (1,459,080)

          (526,890)
               (162)

                 - 
     (38,249,162)

                 - 
(38,249,162)

    
G

rand Total Fund B
alance

1,884,298
$   

4,652,874
$   

(1,847,417)
$     

(1,219,966)
$    

(2,930,710)
$   

(6,170,178)
$   

(9,509,483)
$   

(7,749,648)
$   

(5,991,546)
$        

(4,023,252)
$      

(3,909,125)
$      

(3,634,247)
$     

      (3,634,247)
(3,404,247)

$     
(3,404,247)

$    

Total C
alifornia A

m
erican 

Seaside G
roundw

ater B
asin W

aterm
aster

R
eplenishm

ent Fund
W

ater Year 2018 (O
ctober 1 - Septem

ber 30) / Fiscal Year (January 1 - D
ecem

ber 31, 2018)
B

alance through A
ugust 31, 2018

C
al-A

m
 W

ater B
alance Forw

ard

12



ITEM NO. IX.A.1.a.i  
10/3/2018  

SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER 
  

TO:   Board of Directors  
FROM:  Laura Dadiw, Administrative Officer (AO) 

DATE:  October 3, 2018  
SUBJECT:  Proposed Fiscal Year (Calendar Year) 2019 Annual Administrative Fund Budget 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PURPOSE:  
To advise the Board of the estimated amount necessary to properly fund the Administrative 
oversight portion of the Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster for fiscal year 2019.  

RECOMMENDATION:  
On August 21, 2018 the Budget and Finance Committee approved the proposed 2019 Administrative 
Budget and recommended board approval.    

DISCUSSION:  
The court decision states that next fiscal year’s budgets must be approved by the Board of Directors 
no later than the end of October each year in order for the tentative budgets to be circulated to each 
adjudication Party “no earlier than November 1 and no later than November 15” of each fiscal year.  
 
To control legal costs, the technical program manager develops the first drafts of the annual report 
and case management (CM) statement. The annual report is now due January 15th so legal expense 
for the 2018 Annual Report is budgeted in 2019.  
 
Staff fields whatever issues it can however there have been significant, and mounting, unanticipated 
issues in 2018 determined to require the expertise of WM legal counsel. These include to date: 
 
 Additional information requested by the Judge re: 2018 CM (concluded):     7,695.00 

CAW Production of LSRA APA (concluded):              90.00 
Bishop Mcintosh & Mcintosh (concluded):            405.00 
PRA records request & comments (on-going & extensive):       4,900.00 

                    Total $13,090.00 
              Budgeted expenditures     7,000.00 
          
A Notice Of Lodging Of Correspondence Received Re Pure Water Monterey Project was filed 
with Judge Nichols; in his opinion the matter should first be addressed by the Water Board and 
held in abeyance until the Board has considered the application for the PWM Project. Thereafter, 
the matter should be thoroughly addressed in the next annual report due by January 15, 2018.  
 
Judge Nichols announced his withdrawal as Watermaster judge due to policy revisions by the 
Chief Justice to her Assigned Judges Program on May 21, 2018. The need for appointment of a 
new Watermaster judge was unanticipated and is likely to increase 2019 CM conference costs. 
The unanticipated 2018 issues will be taken up in the 2018 annual report and will most likely 
cause an increase in legal expenses in its preparation in 2019. 

13



ITEM NO. IX.A.1.a.i – 2019 Proposed Administrative Budget 
Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster Board of Directors Meeting 
October 3, 2018 
Page 2 
!
 
The proposed legal expenditures in 2019 are as follows:  

Annual report:    $     3,000  
   CM Statement and Conference:      11,000 
   Unanticipated Issues:        11,000 
   Total:     $   25,000 
 
An estimated $23,000 in unspent 2018 funds are expected to be carried over to 2019 – to be placed 
in the 2019 reserves and the reserve balance brought up to the customary $25,000 with 2019 
assessments.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
An Administrative Fund Assessment of $77,000 is proposed:   
$50,000(AO)+$25,000(Legal)+$25,000(Reserve) = $100,000-$23,000(Carryover) = $77,000 
 
The assessments for the parties required to contribute to the Administrative Fund are:  

  California American Water 83.0%   $63,910  
  City of Seaside 14.4%   11,088  
  City of Sand City 2.6%     2,002  

      
ATTACHMENTS 
1) Proposed Administrative Fund Budget for FY (Calendar Year) 2019 

14



 

2018 Adopted 
Revised 
Budget

2018 
Estimated 

Total 

2019 
Proposed 
Budget

Assessment Income

Reserve/Rollover* 42,000$      42,000$      23,000$      
Administrative Assessment 40,000        40,000        77,000        

Totals 82,000        82,000        100,000      

Expenditures
Contractual Services - Administrative 40,000        33,500        50,000        
Legal Services** 17,000        23,500        25,000        
Total Expenses 57,000        57,000        75,000        
Total Available 25,000        25,000        25,000        

Less Reserve 25,000        25,000        25,000        

Net Available -$              -$              -$              

** October 4, 2018 board action to amend 2018 Administrative Fund Budget to include 
$10,000 additional for legal services for unanticipated expenses and $10,000 reduction 
in contract services for no net change in the bottom line.

Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster
Administrative Fund 

* Note: The reserve/rollover balance of $23,000 was determined upon completion by 
Watermaster staff of a detailed reconciliation from 2006 through July 2018 of the 
Administrative Fund financial records held at the Watermaster office against the 
Administrative Fund financial records held by the City of Seaside - the Watermaster 
fiscal agent.

Proposed Budget 
Administrative Year 2019

15



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

16



ITEM IX.A.1.a.ii. 
10/3/18 

SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN 
WATERMASTER 

 
TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Robert S. Jaques, Technical Program Manager 
REVIEWED BY: Laura Dadiw, Administrative Officer 

DATE: October 3, 2018 
SUBJECT: Consider Approval of Proposed FY (January – December) 2019 Monitoring and 
Management Program (M&MP), and Proposed 2019 M&MP Operations & Capital Fund Budgets 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve, or make changes to and then approve, the below: 
 1.  FY 2019 M&MP 
 2. FY 2019 M&MP Operations Fund Budget 
 3. FY 2019 M&MP Capital Fund Budget (unfunded)  
 
The projected 2020 Operations and Capital Fund Budgets are informational only, no action required. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
At its August 15, 2018 meeting the TAC approved the Proposed FY 2019 M&MP, the proposed 2019 
M&MP Operations Fund Budget, and the unfunded 2019 M&MP Capital Fund Budget, and 
recommended that the Board approve these. On August 21, 2018 the Budget and Finance Committee 
reviewed the TAC-approved M&MP and Budgets, and also approved these documents.    
  
DISCUSSION: 
Other than small changes due to changes in hourly rates for some of the consultants, the following are 
the principle differences between the 2018 M&MP and the proposed 2019 M&MP, and their respective 
budgets:     
 
Task I.2.b.3 (Collect Quarterly Water Quality Samples):  In 2018 the total amount budgeted for this 
Task was $51,128.  That cost included collecting and analyzing water quality samples from the 
Watermaster’s Sentinel Wells.  In 2018 it was determined that water quality samples that have 
historically been collected from the Sentinel Wells were not representative of the quality of the water in 
the aquifers.  Therefore, the decision was made to discontinue collecting and analyzing samples from 
these wells.  This led to the reduction in cost for this Task to $42,083 in 2019.  
 
Task I.3.a.1 (Update the Existing Model): $54,370 was included in the 2018 budget for this Task to 
have HydroMetrics update the existing groundwater model of the Seaside Basin.  That work was 
completed in 2018 and therefore does not need to be included in the M&MP budget for 2019.  This led 
to the reduction in cost for this Task to $0 in 2019. 
 
Task I.3.c (Refine and/or Update the Basin Management Action Plan):  $45,260 was included in the 
2018 budget for this Task to have HydroMetrics update the existing Basin Management Action Plan.  
That work is scheduled to be completed in 2018 and therefore does not need to be included in the 
M&MP budget for 2019.  This led to the reduction in cost for this Task to $0 in 2019. 
 

17



ITEM NO. IX.A.1.a.ii – Proposed 2019 M&MP Work Plan, Operations, and Capital Funds 
Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster Board of Directors Meeting 
October 3, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 
Task I.3.e (Seaside Basin Geochemical Model):  This was a new Task for 2018, and the amount for 
this Task in the 2018 budget was $50,000.  The Task is being performed by MPWMD’s Consultant, 
Pueblo Water Resources, Inc., and is expected to be completed in 2018.  However, HydroMetrics (now 
Montgomery & Associates) may need to work on this task if the initial modeling results find that there 
could be adverse water quality impacts in the aquifers due to the introduction of water from the 
Monterey Peninsula Water Supply Project (desalinated water), the Pure Water Monterey Project 
(advance treated wastewater) and/or Aquifer Storage and Recovery Water (Carmel Basin water).  If the 
modeling results in this finding, Montgomery & Associates may need to use the Seaside Basin 
groundwater model to help Pueblo Water Resources develop means/measures to mitigate such impacts.  
A $10,000 amount is included in the 2019 budget to cover the costs of Montgomery & Associates work, 
if such work needs to be done. 
 
The full cost of the geochemical modeling being performed in 2018 is being borne by the three 
proponents of the projects that intend to inject new sources of water into the Basin.  These are California 
American Water, MPWMD, and Monterey One Water (formerly MRWPCA). 
 
It is anticipated that, if Montgomery & Associates needs to perform work on this Task in 2019, these 
same parties will reimburse the Watermaster for all of the costs to perform this work  Therefore, there 
should be no net cost to the Watermaster for the work of this Task. 
 
SUMMARY: 
As indicated by the right-hand column titled “Comparative Costs from 2018 Budget” in the proposed 2019 
M&MP Operations Budget in Attachment 2, the proposed Budget is $162,552 lower ($369,473-$206,921) 
than the 2018 Budget.  This significant reduction in cost is largely because of the work items in the 2018 
budget that were completed in 2018 and therefore do not need to be included in the 2019 budget. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1.  Proposed 2018 M&M Work Plan 
2.  M&M: Operations Fund Budgets Proposed for 2018 
3. M&M: Operations Fund Budgets Projected for 2019  
4.  M&M: Capital Fund Budgets Proposed for 2018 and Projected for 2019 (both unfunded) 

18



 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
 

 
 

19



20



21



22



23



24



25



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

26



ATTACHMENT 2 

27



 

28



 

ATTACHMENT 3 

29



30



 
 

ATTACHMENT 4 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

 

31



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

32



 
Seaside G

roundw
ater B

asin W
aterm

aster
ITEM

 2 D
R

eplenishm
ent Fund

8/21/18
W

ater Year 2018 (O
ctober 1 - Septem

ber 30) / Fiscal Year (January 1 - D
ecem

ber 31, 2019)
Proposed 2019 B

udget

R
eplenishm

ent Fund 
2006

2007
2008

2009
2010

2011
2012

2013
2014

2015
2016

2017
Estim

ated 2018
Totals W

Y 2006 
Through 2017

 B
udget            

W
Y 2019 

Projected Totals 
Through W

Y 
2018

A
ssessm

ents:
W

Y 05/06
W

Y 06/07
W

Y 07/08
W

Y 08/09
W

Y 09/10
W

Y 10/11
W

Y 11/12
W

Y 12/13
W

Y 13/14
W

Y 14/15
W

Y 15/16
W

Y 16/17
W

Y 17/18
W

Y 18/19
U

nit C
ost:

$1,132 / $283
$1,132 / $283

$2,485 / 621.25
$3,040 / $760

$2,780 / $695
$2,780 / $695

$2,780 / $695
$2,780 / $695

$2,702 / $675.50
$2,702 / $675.50

$2,702 / $675.50
$2,872 / $718

$2,872 / $718
$2,872 / $718

-
$            

1,641,004
$   

4,226,710
$     

(2,871,690)
$    

(2,839,939)
$   

(3,822,219)
$   

(6,060,164)
$   

(8,735,671)
$    

(6,173,771)
$        

(3,102,221)
$      

(676,704)
$        

(676,704)
$       

(491,747)
$       

(371,747)
$       

C
al-A

m
 W

ater Production
3710.0 A

F
4059.9 A

F
3862.9 A

F
2966.0 A

F
3713.5 A

F
3416.0 A

F
3070.9 A

F
3076.6 A

F
3232.1 A

F

E
xceeding N

atural S
afe Yield 

C
onsidering A

lternative P
roducers

    2,106,652 
    2,565,471 

       5,199,014 
      3,773,464 

      4,112,933 
     3,187,854 

     2,280,943 
      2,380,842 

          2,790,539 
         2,113,414 

                  - 
         184,957 

         100,000 
 $   30,796,083 

         100,000 
30,896,083

$    

O
perating Yield O

verproduction 
R

eplenishm
ent

-
              

        20,235 
            8,511 

               - 
               - 

               - 
       154,963 

        181,057 
            281,012 

          312,103 
                  - 

                - 
          20,000 

         977,881 
          20,000 

997,881
         

 $  2,106,652 
 $  2,585,706 

 $     5,207,525 
 $    3,773,464 

 $   4,112,933 
 $   3,187,854 

 $   2,435,907 
 $    2,561,899 

 $        3,071,550 
 $      2,425,516 

 $       184,957 
 $       120,000 

 $   31,773,964 
 $       120,000 

 $   31,893,964 

C
AW

 C
redit A

gainst A
ssessm

ent
(465,648)

     
(12,305,924)

     
(3,741,714)

$    
(5,095,213)

    
(5,425,799)

    
(5,111,413)

     
-

              
-

                  
-

                  
-

                  
(32,145,711)

     
(32,145,711)

     

C
A

W
 U

npaid B
alance

1,641,004
$   

4,226,710
$   

(2,871,690)
      

(2,839,939)
$    

(3,822,219)
$   

(6,060,164)
$   

(8,735,671)
$   

(6,173,771)
$    

(3,102,221)
$        

(676,704)
$        

(676,704)
$        

(491,747)
$       

(371,747)
$       

(371,747)
$       

(251,747)
$       

(251,747)
$       

C
ity of Seaside B

alance Forw
ard

-
$            

243,294
$     

426,165
$       

1,024,272
$    

1,619,973
$    

891,509
$      

(110,014)
$     

(773,813)
$      

(1,575,876)
$        

(2,889,325)
$      

(3,346,548)
$      

(3,232,420)
$     

(3,142,500)
$     

(3,032,500)
$     

C
ity of Seaside M

unicipal Production
332.0 A

F
387.7 A

F
294.3 A

F
293.4 A

F
282.9 A

F
240.7 A

F
233.7 A

F
257.7 A

F
223.6 A

F
223.6 A

F
185.01 A

F

E
xceeding N

atural S
afe Yield 

C
onsidering A

lternative P
roducers

      219,689 
      174,082 

         402,540 
        465,300 

       314,721 
       141,335 

       163,509 
        236,782 

            142,410 
            69,630 

          102,330 
          87,512 

         100,000 
 $     2,619,838 

         100,000 
2,719,838

$     

O
perating Yield O

verproduction 
R

eplenishm
ent

        12,622 
            85 

           4,225 
         16,522 

         20,690 
               - 

          1,689 
         27,007 

              3,222 
                38 

            11,959 
           2,409 

          10,000 
         110,467 

          10,000 
120,467

         

Total M
unicipal

      232,310 
      174,167 

         406,764 
        481,823 

       335,412 
       141,335 

       165,198 
        263,788 

            145,631 
            69,667 

          114,290 
          89,920 

         110,000 
       2,730,305 

         110,000 
       2,840,305 

C
ity of Seaside - G

olf C
ourses

E
xceeding N

atural S
afe Yield - 

A
lternative P

roducer
              - 

              - 
         131,705 

         69,701 
               - 

               - 
               - 

               - 
                   - 

                  - 
                  - 

                - 
                - 

         201,406 
                - 

201,406
         

O
perating Yield O

verproduction 
R

eplenishm
ent

              - 
              - 

          32,926 
         17,427 

               - 
               - 

               - 
               - 

                   - 
                  - 

                  - 
                - 

                - 
          50,353 

                - 
50,353

          

Total G
olf C

ourses
              - 

              - 
         164,631 

         87,128 
               - 

               - 
               - 

               - 
                   - 

                  - 
                  - 

                - 
                - 

         251,759 
                - 

         251,759 

Total C
ity of Seaside*

 $    232,310 
 $    174,167 

 $       571,395 
 $      568,951 

 $     335,412 
 $     141,335 

 $     165,198 
 $      263,788 

 $          145,631 
 $         69,667 

 $        114,290 
 $        89,920 

 $       110,000 
 $     2,982,064 

 $       110,000 
 $     3,092,064 

C
ity of S

easide Late P
aym

ent 5%
        10,984 

         8,704 
          26,712 

         26,750 
         15,737 

          88,887 
          88,887 

In-lieu C
redit A

gainst A
ssessm

ent
-

              
-

               
-

$             
(1,079,613)

    
(1,142,858)

    
(828,996)

      
(1,065,852)

     
(1,459,080)

         
(526,890)

         
(162)

              
-

               
-

               
      (6,103,451)

-
               

(6,103,451)
      

C
ity of S

easide U
npaid B

alance
243,294

$     
426,165

$     
1,024,272

$     
1,619,973

$    
891,509

$      
(110,014)

$     
(773,813)

$     
(1,575,876)

$    
(2,889,325)

$        
(3,346,548)

$      
(3,232,420)

$      
(3,142,500)

$     
(3,032,500)

$     
 $    (3,032,500)

(2,922,500)
$     

(2,922,500)
$     

Total R
eplenishm

ent Fund B
alance

1,884,298
$   

4,652,874
$   

(1,847,417)
$     

(1,219,966)
$    

(2,930,710)
$   

(6,170,178)
$   

(9,509,483)
$   

(7,749,648)
$    

(5,991,546)
$        

(4,023,252)
$      

(3,909,125)
$      

(3,634,247)
$     

(3,404,247)
$     

(3,404,247)
$     

(3,174,247)
$     

(3,174,247)
$     

R
eplenishm

ent Fund B
alance Forw

ard
              - 

1,884,298
$   

4,652,874
$     

(1,847,417)
$    

(1,219,966)
$   

(2,930,710)
$   

(6,170,178)
$   

(9,509,483)
$    

(7,749,648)
$        

(5,991,546)
$      

(4,023,252)
$      

(3,909,125)
$     

(3,634,247)
$     

(3,404,247)
$     

Total R
eplenishm

ent A
ssessm

ents 
    2,349,946 

    2,768,576 
       5,805,632 

      4,369,165 
     4,464,082 

     3,329,189 
     2,601,104 

      2,825,688 
          3,217,182 

        2,495,183 
          114,290 

         274,877 
         230,000 

      34,844,915 
         230,000 

35,074,915
     

Total Paid and/or C
redited

     (465,648)
              - 

     (12,305,924)
     (3,741,714)

     (6,174,826)
     (6,568,657)

     (5,940,409)
     (1,065,852)

         (1,459,080)
         (526,890)

              (162)
                - 

                - 
     (38,249,162)

                - 
(38,249,162)

     
G

rand Total Fund B
alance

1,884,298
$   

4,652,874
$   

(1,847,417)
$     

(1,219,966)
$    

(2,930,710)
$   

(6,170,178)
$   

(9,509,483)
$   

(7,749,648)
$    

(5,991,546)
$        

(4,023,252)
$      

(3,909,125)
$      

(3,634,247)
$     

(3,404,247)
$     

      (3,404,247)
(3,174,247)

$     
(3,174,247)

$     

C
al-A

m
 W

ater B
alance Forw

ard

Total C
alifornia A

m
erican 

33



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

34



ITEM IX.A.1.b 
10/3/2018 

SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER 
 
TO: Board of Directors  

FROM:      Laura Dadiw, Administrative Officer 
DATE: October 3, 2018 

SUBJECT: Unit Cost for Water Year 2018/19 Over Production Replenishment Assessment Amounts 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board approve a Proposed Replenishment Assessment Unit Cost of $2,872 for 
Operating Yield Overproduction and $718 (25% of $2,872) for Natural Safe Yield Over Production for Water 
Year 2019 (October 1, 2018 - September 30, 2019). 
 
On August 21, 2018 the Budget and Finance Committee approved the proposed Unit Cost for Water Year 2018/19 
Over Production Replenishment Assessment Amounts and recommended board approval.    
 
SUMMARY: 
The Replenishment Assessment Unit Cost is used to calculate the Replenishment Assessments that are charged 
to any Standard Producer that exceeds its allocations (both Operating Yield and Natural Safe Yield allocations) 
during the Water Year. 
 
Per page 33 of the Decision, “The per acre-foot amount of the Replenishment Assessments shall be 
determined and declared by Watermaster in October of each Water Year in order to provide Parties with 
advance knowledge of the cost of Over-Production in that Water Year.”  Thus, the per acre-foot amount 
determined by the Board on or before October of 2018 will be used to calculate Replenishment Assessments 
for pumping that occurs during the Water Year which begins on October 1, 2018 and ends on September 30, 
2019. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
For each of the three Water Years 2014, 2015, and 2016, the Board adopted a unit cost of $2,702/AF.  This unit 
cost was developed starting with Water Year 2014 by taking the average of the Base Unit Cost ($/AF) listed in 
Table 1 for each project [$3,507+$1,800+$2,000+$3,500)/4], as the Replenishment Assessment Unit Cost.  The 
Water Year 2014 unit cost was carried over to the two subsequent Water Years because no updated cost data 
was available for the projects listed in Table 1, and no other viable projects could be identified. For Water Year 
2016/17 the Budget and Finance Committee updated the basis from which the annual calculation of the Unit 
Cost of replenishment water is established, a blended cost of a reduced size desalination plant for the Monterey 
Peninsula Water Supply Project and groundwater replenishment provided by the Pure Water Monterey Project 
[($4,591+$2,025+$2,000)/3] = $2,872 (see Table 2).   
 
DISCUSSION: 
Due to the lack of more supportable data the recommendation is to continue using $2,872, the average of the 
Base Unit Cost ($/AF) listed in Table 2 for each project [($4,591+$2,025+$2,000)/3] as the Operating Yield 
Over Production Replenishment Assessment Unit Cost for the Water Year 2018/2019. The Natural Safe Yield 
Replenishment Assessment Unit Cost is 25% of that amount, or $718. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Table 1:  Water Year 2014 Unit Cost Calculation Data 
Table 2:  Updated Unit Cost Data 
 

35



 
 

36



 
 
 

TABLE 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

37



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

38



ITEM IX.A.1.c 
10/3/18 

SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN 
WATERMASTER 

 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Laura Dadiw, Administrative Officer 
 
DATE: October 3, 2018 
 
SUBJECT: Request for Increase in Technical Program Manager Hourly Rate 
 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Approve the request to increase the Technical Program Manager’s hourly rate to $150/hr. effective 
October 1, 2018. 
 
On August 21, 2018 the Budget and Finance Committee approved the request for increase in Technical 
Program Manager hourly rate and recommended board approval.    
 
DISCUSSION:   
When Technical Program Manager, Robert Jaques was hired as the Watermaster Technical Program 
Manager on June 6, 2007 his hourly rate was set at $100/hour.  Mr. Jaques pays all his own travel, office, 
printing, and other work-related expenses within that hourly rate. 
 
Since his date of employ some 11 years ago he has maintained that same hourly rate, while the hourly 
rates for all of the consultants the Watermaster uses, as well as the employees of MPWMD and the other 
governmental agencies associated with Watermaster, have increased during that same time period.   
 
The hourly rates that are billed for these consultants and employees working in professional positions 
comparable to the Technical Program Manager are shown in the table below.  As the table indicates, 
those hourly rates have grown significantly since Watermaster hired Mr. Jaques. 
 
Mr. Jaques has over 40 years of experience working on local and regional water, wastewater, recycled 
water, stormwater, and groundwater projects and issues, and 11 years working as the Watermaster 
Technical Program Manager.  
 
To reflect the experience brought to this position, and to recognize that hourly rates for all of the 
associated consultants have increased significantly since the date of his employment with the 
Watermaster, it is requested that Mr. Jaques’ hourly rate as Watermaster Technical Program Manager be 
increased to $150/hr. effective October 1, 2018. 
 
This should not require an increase in the amount budgeted for this position either this year or in 2019, 
since the amount budgeted has never been reached in any of the prior years. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: None 

39



ITEM NO. IX.A.1.c – Request for Increase in Technical Program Manager Hourly Rate 
Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster Board of Directors Meeting 
October 3, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 
 
 

 
ENTITY JOB TITLE 2007/2008  BILLABLE 

HOURLY RATE 
2018 BILLABLE 
HOURLY RATE 

Martin Feeney Professional 
(Martin Feeney) 

Field rate $115/hr.;  
office rate $150/hr. 

Field rate $165/hr.;  
office rate $195/hr. 

MPWMD Senior Hydrologist 
(Jon Lear) 

$99/hr. $149/hr. 

HydroMetrics 
(now Montgomery 

& Associates) 

Scientist VI 
(Georgina King) 

Scientist VIII 
(Derrik Williams) 

$125//hr. 
 

$145/hr. 

$200//hr. 
 

$225/hr. 

Todd Groundwater Senior Hydrologist 
(Gus Yates) 

$140/hr. $220/hr. 

 
 
 
 

 

40



!

ITEM No. IX.A.1.d 
10/3/2018 

SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER 
 
TO:   Board of Directors 
FROM:  Laura Dadiw, Administrative Officer 

DATE:  October 3, 2018 
SUBJECT:  Discussion/Consider Approving Amendment No.1 to Brownstein, Hyatt, Farber, Schreck 

(BHFS) (Russ McGlothlin) RFS No. 2018-01   
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  Approve Amendment No.1 to BHFS RFS No. 2018-01 raising the total 
authorized cost of the RFS by $17,000 to $24,000.00.!
 
On August 21, 2018 the Budget and Finance Committee approved Amendment No.1 to BHFS 
RFS No. 2018-01 and recommended board approval.    
 
BACKGROUND: 
The original Total Price of RFS No. 2018-01 was $7,000 for BHFS to provide, on an ongoing and as-
requested basis, legal services to Watermaster on a variety of topics.   
 
Staff fields whatever issues it can however there have been significant, and mounting, unanticipated issues in 
2018 determined to require the expertise of WM legal counsel. These include to date: 
 
 Additional information requested by the Judge re: 2018 CM (concluded):     7,695.00 

CAW Production of LSRA APA (concluded):              90.00 
Bishop Mcintosh & Mcintosh (concluded):            405.00 
PRA records request & comments (on-going & extensive):       4,900.00 

               Total additional expenditures $13,090.00 
              Budgeted expenditures     2,160.00 
 
This unanticipated work that needed to be performed resulted in all of the monies allocated to providing 
legal services being exhausted in March 2018.  The Board at its August 1, 2018 meeting approved a budget 
adjustment moving $10,000 from the Contract Services Administrative Officer (AO) budget line to the 
Legal Services budget line, increasing the budgeted amount for legal services to $17,000 and reducing AO 
to $40,000.  
!
DISCUSSION: 
In order for PROFESSIONAL to continue providing these types of services during the remainder of 2018, this 
Amendment No.1 to RFS No. 2018-01 hereby adds $17,000.00 to the authorized cost of RFS No. 2018-01.  
This amount includes the $10,000 budget revision approved by the Board at its 8/1/18 meeting and the $7,000 
movement proposed from the Administrative Fund Reserve. Therefore, the revised cost of RFS No. 2018-01 
authorized by this Amendment No.1 is $24,000.00. 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
The $7,000 from the Administrative Fund Reserve leaves an estimated $18,000 in the fund to be carried over 
to 2019 reserves and the reserve balance brought up to the customary $25,000 with 2019 assessments.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Amended RFS 2018-01 with Brownstein, Hyatt, Farber, Schreck (BHFS) (Russ McGlothlin) 

41



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

42



!

 
SEASIDE BASIN WATERMASTER 

REQUEST FOR SERVICE 
 
 
DATE: ___October 3, 2018____________  RFS NO. 2018·01 Amendment No.1 
 
 
TO: Russ McGlothlin_______________   FROM: Laura Dadiw 
Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck, LLP   Watermaster 
1020 State Street     PO Box 51502 
Santa Barbara. CA 93101-2711    Pacific Grove, CA 93950 
 
 
Services Needed and Purpose: Provide legal services to prepare and file a motion, and attend a status conference 
hearing via CourtCall on March 30, 2018 with Judge Nichols of the Superior Court; assist as may be requested with 
preparing the Watermaster Annual Report to Court to be filed by January 15, 2019; and provide miscellaneous legal 
consultation as may be needed by Watermaster. See Amended Scope of Work in Attachment 1.   
 
 
Completion Date: All work under this RFS will be completed no later than December 31, 2018. 
 
 
Method of Compensation: Time and Expense Payment Method. Hourly rates and costs for Other Direct Costs and 
Expenses are described in Attachment I. 
 
 
Total Price Authorized by this RFS: The revised Total Price for RFS No. 2018-01, as authorized by this 
Amendment No.1 thereto, is $24,000  
(Cost is authorized only when evidenced by signature below.) 
 
 
Total Price may not be exceeded without prior written authorization by WATERMASTER in accordance with 
Section V. COMPENSATION. 
 
 
Requested by:  Not Applicable to this RFS                               Date: _____________ 
 
 
 
Authorized by: _______________________________          Date: _____________ 
    Ralph Rubio 
    WATERMASTER Chairman of the Board 
 
 
Agreed to by: ________________________________          Date: _____________ 
   PROFESSIONAL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

43



!

 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
 
 

The original Total Price of RFS No. 2018-01 was $7,000.  A portion of that amount was for PROFESSIONAL to 
provide, on an ongoing and as-requested basis, legal services to WATERMASTER on a variety of topics.   
 
Unanticipated work that needed to be performed in 2018 resulted in all of the monies allocated to providing legal 
services being exhausted in March 2018.   
 
In order for PROFESSIONAL to continue providing these types of services during the remainder of 2018, this 
Amendment No.1 to RFS No. 2018-01 hereby adds $17,000.00 to the authorized cost of RFS No. 2018-01.  
Therefore, the revised cost of RFS No. 2018-01 authorized by this Amendment No.1 is $24,000.00. 
!
!

44



 

 

ITEM No. IX.A.2.a 
10/3/18 

 
SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN 

WATERMASTER 
 
 

TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Robert S. Jaques, Technical Program Manager 
 
DATE:  October 3, 2018 
 
SUBJECT:  Consider Approval of Application for Storage and Recovery of Water from the Pure Water 
Monterey Project  

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  
RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the attached application to Store and Recover Non-Native Water from the Seaside Basin for 
the proposed storage of PWM water in the Basin. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Amended Decision of the Court which created the Watermaster requires that any Standard 
Producer that wishes to store and recover water from the Seaside Basin must first receive approval by 
the Watermaster to do so.  The application process is described in Section III.L.3.j.xx of the Amended 
Decision.  In anticipation that some Standard Producers may wish to use their storage allocations for 
this purpose, the Board at its June 2, 2010 meeting approved an application template for storing and 
recovering water.  
 
DISCUSSION 
In early 2018 California American Water and the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
(MPWMD) submitted a draft joint application to store water that will be produced by the Pure Water 
Monterey (PWM) project. The draft application was revised in consultation with Watermaster staff and 
was subsequently reviewed by the TAC at its March 14, 2018 meeting. The TAC found the application 
to be satisfactory, and recommended that the Board approve that application. 
 
The application presented to the Board includes three minor revisions to the version that was submitted 
to the TAC. Specifically, the contact for California American Water was changed, the term “AWT 
Water” was defined, and MPWMD was identified as the party injecting the PWM water into the Basin.  
If the Board approves the attached application, an Agreement for Storage and Recovery will be 
developed and it is anticipated that the agreement will be presented to the Board for its approval at its 
December 2018 meeting.   
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Application to Store and Recover Non-Native Water from the Seaside Basin for the proposed storage of 
PWM water in the Basin. 

45



 

 

 
APPLICATION TO STORE AND RECOVER NON-NATIVE WATER  

FROM THE SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN 
 

[Note:  As discussed herein, the Agenda Transmittal version of this Application does not include 
all of the lengthy attachments that are part of the full Application.  However, the full Application, 
including all of its attachments, is posted for review on the Watermaster’s website.] 

 
INSTRUCTIONS:   This Application form is for use by Standard Producers in the Seaside 
Groundwater Basin (Seaside Basin) for the purpose of obtaining approval from the Seaside Basin 
Watermaster (Watermaster) to store Non-Native water in, and to subsequently recover that stored water 
from, the Seaside Basin.  The application process is as described in Section III.L.3.j.xx of the Amended 
Decision of the Monterey County Superior Court, Case No. M66343, filed February 9, 2007.   
 
California-American Water Company (CAWC);  
Co-Applicant Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (MPWMD) 

Name of Standard Producer (Applicant) 
 

Contact Information for Applicant: 
 
Contact Person:  Christopher Cook 
 
Address:  511 Forest Lodge Rd. Ste 100, Pacific Grove, CA 93950 
 
Telephone:  831-646-3241 
 
Contact Information for Co-Applicant: 
 
Contact Person:  Dave Stoldt 
 
Address:  5 Harris Court – Bldg. G, Monterey, CA 93940 
 
Telephone:  831-658-5651 
 
Proposed quantity of non-native water Applicant seeks to store through spreading or direct 
injection into the Seaside Basin (acre-feet per year): 
 
CAWC wishes to store 6,000 acre-feet per year of advanced treated recycled water from the Pure Water 
Monterey project (AWT Water) in the Basin, which includes AWT Water used to backflush an 
injection well that percolates into the ground. MPWMD wishes to use CAWC’s Storage Allocation to 
store up to 4,000 acre-feet of the AWT Water for CAWC’s future use (the “Reserve Water”). The AWT 
Water will be directly injected into the Basin by MPWMD. 
 
Proposed location(s) where the spreading or direct injection of non-native water into the Seaside 
Basin will occur.   
 
The storage of water will be performed at the location(s) shown in Attachment A.  
 
 

46



 

 

Proposed location(s) where the stored water may be recovered.   
CAWC will recover the AWT Water at the following location(s), or at such other locations as may be 
approved by the Watermaster.  The aquifer from which each of these wells draws is shown in parentheses:  

A. Ord Grove Well #2, 1987 Park Ct., Seaside (Santa Margarita) 
B. Paralta Well, 2104 Paralta Ave., Seaside (Santa Margarita) 
C. Luzern Well #2, 1984 Luzern St., Seaside (Paso Robles) 
D. Playa Well #3, 1237 Playa Ave., Seaside (Paso Robles) 
E. Plumas Well #4, 1453 Plumas Lane, Seaside (Paso Robles) 
F. Santa Margarita ASR-1, 1910 General Jim Moore Blvd, Seaside (Santa Margarita) 
G. Santa Margarita ASR-2, 1910 General Jim Moore Blvd, Seaside (Santa Margarita) 
H. Seaside Middle School ASR-3, 2111 General Jim Moore Blvd, Seaside (Santa Margarita) 
I. Seaside Middle School ASR-4, 2111 General Jim Moore Blvd, Seaside (Santa Margarita) 

 
Water quality characteristics of the non-native water proposed for spreading or direct injection 
into the Seaside Basin.   
The AWT water that MPWMD will inject into the Seaside Basin will not exceed the water quality 
limits contained in the Waste Discharge Requirements and Water Recycling Requirements issued for 
the Pure Water Monterey Project issued by the Central Coast RWQCB in Order No.  R3-2017-0003. 
That document establish limits for:  

• Primary Maximum Contaminant Levels for Inorganic Chemicals 
• Maximum Contaminant Levels for Radionuclides  
• Maximum Contaminant Levels for Organic Chemicals 
• Maximum Contaminant Levels for Disinfection Byproducts 
• Action Levels for Lead and Copper 
• Secondary Maximum Contaminant Levels and Upper Limits for Consumer Acceptance 

 
These limits are quite lengthy and are therefore not included in this agenda transmittal.  They are, 
however, included in Attachment B of the full application which is posted in the 
“Agreements/Contracts” column of the “Postings and Records” tab of the Watermaster’s website at 
http://seasidebasinwatermaster.org/Other/Cal%20Am%20Storage%20Agreement%20Application.pdf 
Those limits were taken from the document titled Final Engineering Report, Volume I:  Engineering 
Report Pure Water Monterey Groundwater Replenishment Project, Revised November 2017.  
 
Permits and approvals from regulatory agencies.   
The Central Coast RWQCB has issued Waste Discharge Requirements and Water Recycling 
Requirements for the AWT Water under Order No. R3-2017-0003.  That document includes sections 
that specify:   

• Influent Specifications  
• Recycled Water Treatment Specifications  
• Recycled Water Discharge Limits  
• General Requirements and Other Provisions (pertaining to the operation of the treatment and 

injection facilities) 
• State Water Resources Control Board Division of Drinking Water (DDW) Requirements  
• Enforcement  

 
That document is quite lengthy and is therefore not included in this agenda transmittal.  The body of 
that document, however, is included in Attachment C of the full application which is posted in the 
“Agreements/Contracts” column of the “Postings and Records” tab of the Watermaster’s website at 
http://seasidebasinwatermaster.org/Other/Cal%20Am%20Storage%20Agreement%20Application.pdf.

47



 

 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

Delivery Point 
AWT Water will be injected by MPWMD into the Seaside Groundwater Basin using new injection 
wells. The proposed new Injection Well Facilities will be located east of General Jim Moore 
Boulevard, south of Eucalyptus Road in the City of Seaside, including up to eight injection wells (four 
deep injection wells, four vadose zone wells, in pairs identified as #5, #6, #7, and #8 in the figure 
below), six monitoring wells, and back-flush facilities. 

 

 

48



Type
O

ct
N

ov
D

ec
O

ct-D
ec 17

Jan
Feb

M
ar

Jan-M
ar 18

A
pr

M
ay

Jun
A

pr-Jun 18
Jul

A
ug

Sep
Jul-Sep 18

R
eported Total

Y
ield A

llocation
from

 W
Y

 2017
for W

Y
 2018

C
oastal Subareas
C

AW
 - C

oastal Subareas
SPA

367.69
307.12

315.00
989.81

245.45
241.90

170.36
657.71

71.12
85.16

165.56
321.84

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

1,969.36
1,837.38

708.80
2,546.17

C
ity of Seaside (M

unicipal)
SPA

16.46
13.37

14.39
44.22

13.05
13.64

13.31
39.99

16.11
16.97

16.83
49.91

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

134.13
150.74

0.00
150.74

G
ranite R

ock C
om

pany
SPA

 - -
 - -

 - -
0.00

 - -
 - -

 - -
0.00

 - -
 - -

 - -
0.00

 - -
 - -

 - -
0.00

0.00
14.22

252.77
266.99

D
B

O
 D

evelopm
ent N

o. 30
SPA

 - -
 - -

 - -
0.00

 - -
 - -

 - -
0.00

 - -
 - -

 - -
0.00

 - -
 - -

 - -
0.00

0.00
25.80

481.76
507.56

C
alabrese (C

ypress Pacific Inv.)
SPA

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
3.45

12.72
16.17

C
ity of Seaside (G

olf C
ourses)

A
PA

45.04
6.11

15.49
66.64

1.94
26.13

8.92
36.99

34.42
83.58

67.24
185.24

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

288.87
540.00

540.00
Sand C

ity
A

PA
0.02

0.10
0.02

0.14
0.08

0.19
0.15

0.41
0.10

0.13
0.09

0.32
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.87

9.00
9.00

SN
G

 (Security N
ational G

uaranty)
A

PA
 - -

 - -
 - -

0.00
0.00

0.58
 - -

 - -
 - -

 - -
 - -

 - -
0.00

0.00
149.00

149.00
C

alabrese (C
ypress Pacific Inv.)

A
PA

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.04
0.04

0.00
0.00

0.02
0.02

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.06
6.00

6.00
M

ission M
em

orial (A
lderw

oods)
A

PA
2.31

0.46
1.02

3.79
0.64

0.44
0.12

1.20
0.22

1.86
1.25

3.33
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
8.31

31.00
31.00

C
oastal Subareas Totals

1,104.60
736.33

560.66
0.00

2,401.60
2,766.59

1,456.04
4,222.64

Laguna Seca Subarea
C

AW
 - Laguna Seca Subarea

SPA
24.00

18.60
23.59

66.19
19.19

21.63
18.47

59.29
19.66

27.54
31.26

78.46
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
203.94

0.00
0.00

Ryan Ranch U
nit

2.29
3.97

4.20
10.46

3.66
0.93

0.00
4.59

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

15.05
H

idden H
ills U

nit
10.24

5.63
9.87

25.74
7.75

8.80
7.82

24.37
8.29

10.88
12.23

31.40
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
81.51

Bishop U
nit

11.47
9.00

9.52
29.99

7.78
11.90

10.65
30.33

11.37
16.66

19.03
47.06

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

107.38
N

icklaus C
lub M

onterey
A

PA
23.00

0.00
0.00

23.00
0.00

2.00
0.00

2.00
7.00

18.00
27.00

52.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
77.00

251.00
251.00

Laguna Seca G
olf R

esort (B
ishop)

A
PA

30.81
0.00

0.00
30.81

5.68
2.24

0.17
8.10

6.21
29.52

42.09
77.82

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

116.73
320.00

320.00
York School

A
PA

2.24
0.08

0.71
3.02

0.01
0.54

0.01
0.56

0.85
2.05

1.58
4.48

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

8.06
32.00

32.00
Laguna Seca C

ounty Park
A

PA
1.01

0.65
0.97

2.63
1.15

1.18
0.60

2.93
1.36

1.56
2.06

4.99
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
10.54

41.00
41.00

Laguna Seca Subarea Totals
125.65

72.87
217.75

0.00
416.27

644.00
0.00

644.00

Total Production by W
M

 Producers
1,230.26

809.20
778.41

0.00
2,817.87

3,410.59
1,456.04

4,866.64
A

nnual Production from
 A

PA
 Producers

510.44
1,379.00

A
nnual Production from

 SPA
 Producers

2,307.43
3,487.64

C
ity of Seaside G

olf C
ourses In-Lieu (M

C
W

D
 source w

ater)

M
C

W
D

 delivery
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

C
AW

 / M
PW

M
D

 A
SR

 (C
arm

el R
iver B

asin source w
ater)

Injection
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
341.23

341.23
189.26

0.00
0.00

189.26
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
530.49

(R
ecovery)

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

43.15
43.15

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

43.15

N
et A

SR
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
341.23

341.23
189.26

0.00
43.15

232.41
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
573.64

SE
A

SID
E

 G
R

O
U

N
D

W
AT

E
R

 B
A

SIN
 W

AT
E

R
M

A
ST

E
R

R
eported Q

uarterly and A
nnual W

ater Production From
 the Seaside G

roundw
ater B

asin
For A

ll Producers Included in the Seaside B
asin A

djudication -- W
ater Year 2018

(A
ll Values in A

cre-Feet [A
F])

N
otes: 

1.  The W
ater Y

ear (W
Y

) begins O
ctober 1 and ends Septem

ber 30 of the follow
ing calendar year.  For exam

ple, W
Y

 2018 begins on O
ctober 1, 2017, and ends on Septem

ber 30, 2018. 

2.   "Type" refers to w
ater right as described in Seaside B

asin A
djudication decision as am

ended, signed February 9, 2007 (M
onterey C

ounty Superior C
ourt C

ase N
o. M

66343). 

3.   V
alues show

n in the table are based on reports to the W
aterm

aster received by July 15, 2018. 

4.  A
ll values are rounded to the nearest hundredth of an acre-foot.  W

here required, reported data w
ere converted to acre-feet utilizing the relationships:  325,851 gallons = 43,560 cubic feet = 1 acre-foot. 

5.  "B
ase O

perating Y
ield A

llocation" values are based on Seaside B
asin A

djudication decision.  These values are consistent w
ith the W

aterm
aster Producer Allocations W

ater Year 2018  (see  Item
 IX

 B
. in 12/6/2017 B

oard packet). 

6.   A
ny m

inor discrepancies in totals are attributable to rounding. 

7.  A
PA

 = A
lternative Producer A

llocation; SPA
 = Standard Producer A

llocation; C
A

W
 = C

alifornia A
m

erican W
ater. 

8.  It should be noted that C
A

W
/M

PW
M

D
 A

SR
 "Injection" and "R

ecovery" am
ounts are not expected to "balance" w

ithin each W
ater Y

ear.  This is due to the injection recovery "rules" that are part of SW
R

C
B

 w
ater rights perm

its  
     and/or separate agreem

ents w
ith state and federal resources agencies that are associated w

ith the w
ater rights perm

its. 

49



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

50



ITEM NO. XII  
10/3/2018  

SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER 
  

TO:   Board of Directors  
FROM:  Laura Dadiw, Administrative Officer  

DATE:  October 3, 2018  
SUBJECT:  Status of Appointment of a New Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster Judge 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

STAFF COMMENTS:  
Judge Nichols will soon withdraw as assigned all-purpose judge in the Watermaster matter. The 
revised Assigned Judges Program, effective July 1, 2018, dramatically reduces the availability of 
program days to the courts throughout the state, caps the number of days an assigned judge may 
serve in any year, and (retroactively) caps the total number of days (1320) an assigned judge may 
serve in this capacity. Judge Nichols has exceeded that categorical limit and has elected to 
conclude his service (as required) by the end of this calendar year, earlier if the program requires 
earlier separation. 
 
Monterey Superior Court Presiding Judge Lydia Villarreal would be willing to assign this case to 
a judge of the Monterey Superior Court. Her assumption of that responsibility requires a 
stipulation by Watermaster parties. If the parties do not so stipulate, efforts will be undertaken to 
obtain the assignment of an out of county judge.  
 
As of September 20, 2018, Watermaster legal counsel informed that numerous parties objected 
to using a Monterey County judge so there was no stipulation to that effect submitted to the 
court. There has been no notice of a new judicial assignment. Thus, Watermaster is waiting for 
assignment of a neutral, out-of-county judge. 
 

51


